
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020) came into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable 
councils to hold remote committee meetings during the 
Covid 19 pandemic period. This is to ensure local authorities 
can conduct business during this current public health 
emergency. 
 
This meeting will be held remotely under these regulations, 
via the Zoom application and will be webcast to ensure 
accessibility by the public and press. 

Please ask for: 
Jonah Anthony 

 
9 March 2021 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
HOUSING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR (TASK AND FINISH PANEL) to be held on 
Wednesday 17 March 2021 at 1.30 pm via Zoom 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Executive Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 February 
2021 (previously circulated). 

Public Document Pack



 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda. 
 

5.   RESPONSIVE REPAIRS  
 

6.   DATE AND TIME FUTURE MEETINGS  
 

7.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors M.Holloway (Chairman) 

M.Birleson 
B.Fitzsimon 
 

C Juggins 
H.Quenet 
 

    
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Jonah 
Anthony, Governance Services on  or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


-1- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 February 2021 
 

 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the HOUSING MAINTENANCE (TASK AND FINISH PANEL) 
held on Monday 22 February 2021 at 3.00 pm via Zoom 

 
PRESENT: Councillors M.Holloway (Chairman) 

 
  M.Birleson, B.Fitzsimon, H.Quenet and J.Cragg 

 
OFFICIALS 
PRESENT: 

S.Russell, Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) 
P.Gray, Head of Property Services 
S.Pearson, Head of Housing Operations 
D.Murphy, Commercial Manager 
J.Beare, Team Leader - Responsive Repairs 
P. Horsley, Asset Manager, Housing 
J.Anthony, Principal Governance Officer 

 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 

 
The meeting was in agreement that Councillor Max Holloway would be 
appointed 
Chair of the task and finish panel. 
 

2. SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS 
 
The following substitution was made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules: 
 
Councillor J.Cragg for Councillor C.Juggins 
 

3. APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor C.Juggins and Councillor 
N.Pace (Executive Member for Housing and Community). 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 
 
Councillor J.Cragg declared an interest by virtue of a close relation residing in a 
council property within the Borough. It was agreed that this would not be a 
reason to preclude Councillor J.Cragg from the meeting. 
 

5. SCRUTINY SCOPING DOCUMENT 
 
Members considered the scrutiny scoping document previously circulated. 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



-2- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 February 2021 
 

 
 

RESOLVED:  
 

- That the scrutiny scoping document be adopted 
 

6. MAINTAINING OUR HOUSING ASSET 
 
The Panel received a presentation from Officers on a number of areas relating to 
how the Council maintains its housing asset. 
 
 
How the Council manages voids (empty properties) 
 
 
The following points were raised and noted: 
 

- Void properties were categorised under different groups (V5, V10 and 
V15) by council surveyors and Mears (the Council’s contractors) following 
a joint pre work inspection of the vacant property. The categorisation 
reflected the amount of work required before the property could be 
provided to a new tenant, with the number referring to the target number 
of working days to complete the work. A VE category was reserved for 
properties which had suffered from extensive structural damage, such as 
those which have been hit be a car 

- During this pre work inspection the work that would be required is agreed 
by the parties 

- The pre work inspection process has been in place for over a year 
- Tenants would not be involved at the pre work inspection phase 
- Damp issues would be expected to be identified during the void period, 

but there are occasions things have come to light only after the tenant has 
moved into the property. Officers confirmed that they would not allow a 
tenant to move into a property that was known to have a damp issue 

- Ideally small “snags identified in a post work inspection would not hold up 
a property being let. However if there have been a multiple of issues, of if 
there are major issues, then the property is not let until the necessary 
works have taken place 

- Maintenance issues which are not health and safety issues, are logged 
and would not delay a property being let. For example if a front door 
required to be replaced, as long as the property remained safe and 
secure, the team would seek to let the property whilst the replacement 
door was being sourced (which could take several weeks) 

- Gas connections are capped when the property is vacant to protect the 
safety of the operatives whilst they work at the property and can only be 
uncapped once the tenant had begun to occupy the property and there 
has been a gas safety check carried out. This means heating systems are 
not tested, although the age and state of the boiler is noted 

- That Members would benefit from seeing the forms used during the pre 
and post inspection visits, and the Void Standards 

- Passive ventilation is installed on chimney breast to comply with building 
standards in order to avoid damp issues, but they can be closed if 

Page 4



-3- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 February 2021 
 

 
 

required and should not have a noticeable impact on heating and room 
temperatures 

- There is a recharge process for reclaiming the cost of tackling issues that 
have been caused by previous tenants, but the circumstances under 
which void properties are returned to the council has varied considerably 
and this is not always possible. Homes are vacated in different 
circumstances, and this can include evictions and abandonment. 

- A simplified “Key to Key” process map was noted by Members. This refers 
to the time between the property being handed back to the council and 
property being reallocated and let to another tenant.  The process map 
demonstrated the different process that are considered during the void 
phase 

- In parallel to the repair and maintenance work, an allocation process 
would be undertaken to identify appropriate tenants 

- Once the property is ready, prospective tenants are invited to view the 
property and confirm it meets their needs, with tenants invited in order of 
their priority on the housing needs register 

- Multiple teams are involved in managing a void, including neighbourhood 
teams, property service offices and contractors, and the allocation team 

- Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) can be divided into 
Strategic/Corporate KPIs , Operational KPIs and Contractual – Property 
Services KPIs, which are reported up through the corporate performance 
clinics 

- The ability to meet KPIs has been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic 
and lockdown restrictions, both in terms of undertaking the necessary 
work, but also in allowing properties to be viewed by prospective tenants. 
However Members noted that only one KPI target had not been met in 
Quarter 3 

 
Planned maintenance and investment 
 
 
The following points were raised and noted: 
 

- Officers currently used the Lifespan software to manage the asset 
database  

- The database is then used to plan the rolling 5 year programme of 
maintenance and investment 

- A decision has been taken to move to the Orchard Asset Management 
system. This would facilitate integration with the Orchard Housing and 
Finance system currently used by the team, and being a live system 
would help reduce duplication of records and other administrative 
inefficiencies 

- Surveys carried out do cover communal areas in apartment buildings and 
sheltered accommodation 

- Officers believed the level of investment and upkeep of assets compared 
favourably with councils of a similar size and with similar stock.  However 
such comparisons could be limited given that local context (for example 
having a garden city in compassion to an inner city location) and historic 

Page 5



-4- 
 
Housing Maintenance (Task and Finish Panel) 
22 February 2021 
 

 
 

levels of investments could differ significantly between councils (with 
those councils who have invested heavily in their housing stock in the 
past potentially not needing to invest as much into maintenance work 
now) 

- The Decent Homes Standards is the standard the council works towards 
when implementing its maintenance programme and developing new 
properties. The standard uses the phrase “reasonable” which is open to 
interpretation. However Officers believed that the Council’s expectation as 
to what constituted reasonable was of a higher standard than other 
councils.  The Decent Homes Standard is being reviewed by the 
Government by way of a consultation process 

 
 

The Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) set out the interconnectivity 
of the work around void properties and the need for a number of cross team 
groups and meetings to share information and coordinate activities. A high level 
cross team officer review had been initiated to consider how effective current 
working arrangements were and identify where improvements could be made 
and operations modernised. This would also include getting feedback from 
Mears and the Tenants Panel, as well as investigating the use of automated 
workflow and agile working systems and processes.  On this last point the Panel 
acknowledged the need to protect sensitive data of the tenants. 
 
Customer engagement was being reviewed to ensure customers were better 
able to shape the provisions they received across the housing service area. 
 
The Panel noted that the Council turned around approximately 500 void 
properties a year. 
 

7. TIMESCALES AND REPORTING TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
Panel noted the aim to report back to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 5 
July 2021. However the Chair would provide a verbal update to the Committee at 
the next meeting on 3 March 2021. 
 

8. DATE AND TIME FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
The Panel noted the need to review the scheduled list of meetings given the 
purdah period ahead of the May 2021 elections. 
 

 
Meeting ended at 4.22 pm 
JA 

 

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny of the 
Housing Maintenance Service

March 2021

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5



Background
5 meetings covering;

• Stage one – maintaining our council housing assets
• Stage two - responsive repairs

• Stage three - complaints

• Stage four - managing the quality of works

• Stage five - how we are improving the customer 

experience and repairs and maintenance service

P
age 8



Stage two – responsive repairs

• How the council manages responsive repairs, including 

the role of different teams

• What is the council’s priorities for repairs?

• Key Performance Indicators

• Quality control and post-inspections

• The contractors view 

• Members welcome to contribute

P
age 9



Responsive repairs numbers

• Between 4,500-5,500 telephone calls are 
received each month to the 0800 number

• Between 200-250 emails are received 
daily into the Housing Maintenance inbox

• Between 1,600–2,300 works orders 
are raised each month

P
age 10



Priorities for responsive repairs

• Emergency (within 24 hours)
• Urgent (within 5 working days)
• Routine (within 25 working days)
• Major (within 60 working days)

Priorities for repairs were presented to, and 
agreed by, the Tenants Panel on 25 
September 2019

P
age 11



How should repairs be managed?
• Repair reported by tenant (usually by 

telephone)
• Details checked against existing records 

(phone number, email, advocates, 
vulnerability, passwords, 2-handed visits, 
medical needs)

• Repair diagnosed by Repairs Service Centre 
including responsibility, scope of work, trade, 
priority (accelerated priority if vulnerable)

P
age 12



• Works order issued to Mears via 
live interface

• Appointment booked (including any special 
arrangements for tenant)

• Work completed (including any 
safeguarding referrals)

• 10% post inspection by surveyors
• Works order closed

P
age 13



Quality Assurance

• Work in progress checks (contractor and 
council)

• 10% Post inspections of general repairs
• 100% Post inspection of any work > £500
• Customer satisfaction surveys
• Trend analysis

P
age 14



Key Performance Indicators

• Purpose
• Legal contract and Partnering agreement
• Collated weekly, monthly and quarterly
• Operational and strategic meetings

P
age 15



Relevant Contractual Key 
Performance Indicators, 1

• % of all repairs completed in target

• % of emergency repairs completed in target

• % of urgent repairs completed in target

• % of routine repairs completed in target

• Number of working days to complete a repair (routine)

• % of repairs completed at first visit

P
age 16



Relevant Contractual Key 
Performance Indicators, 2

• Appointments made as a % of repairs raised

• Appointments kept as a % of appointments made

• % overall tenant satisfaction with the repairs service

• % of responsive repairs recalls

• % of repairs that pass post inspection

P
age 17



Responsive repairs data 2018 - 2021

P
age 18



Responsive repairs performance

Overall the responsive 
repairs service is 
performing well in 
respect of meeting KPIs.
Strong KPI performance 
may however may not be 
translating into good 
customer service

P
age 19



Customer satisfaction surveys - 1

P
age 20



Customer satisfaction surveys - 2

P
age 21



Case study

Typical repair journey with process failures

P
age 22



Stage WelHat Mears Potential 
stress point

Initial call received X
Repair diagnosed X X
Interface with Mears X X
Works order raised X
Appointment made X X
Scaffolding erected X
Delay before work carried out X X
Works order closed X
Post inspection X
Tenant notifies that work not 
completed X X

Recall contractor X
Re-erect scaffolding X
Work completed X X
Scaffolding not struck X
Scaffolding struck X
Post inspection X X
Customer satisfaction form X
Learning / actions from returned 
customer satisfaction form X X

P
age 23



The gap between the KPIs being met 
and the customer satisfaction could 

be for several reasons

The repair case has been recorded incorrectly – the contractor must 
return with necessary part or tools

The reported repair requires more work than initially expected

Sufficient time has not been allocated to the job, so contractor needs 
to return to complete works

Repair offers a temporary or short-term solution, then issue occurs 
again

P
age 24



Most common reasons for 
dissatisfaction with repairs 2018-2021

P
age 25



Customers are finding it more difficult 
to contact the service to report a repair

P
age 26



Partnership Overview

• 15 Year Contract commencing in 2007 to 2022
• 25,000 Repairs on average per annum
• £168 Million (Repairs, Voids, Planned works)

• Repairs Received between October 2019 and February 2020
• Emergency = 3158
• Routine = 5525 10,548 in total
• Urgent = 1865

• Repairs Received from October 2020 to February 2021
• Emergency = 3390
• Routine = 5770 11,604 in total
• Urgent = 2444

P
age 27



SCOTLAND – complete 
emergencies only.

Sample of Mears contracts 
during COVID.

Emergency Only

• Crawley
• Exeter
• Hammersmith & Fulham
• RHP
• Lambeth
• Leeds
• Cross Keys
• Redbridge
• Rotherham

Emergency & 
Essential Works

• Canterbury
• Eastbourne
• Home Group
• Meadway
• Milton Keynes
• Octavia
• Orbit
• Riverside
• Thurrock

BAU (trying to 
achieve)

• Northwoods
• Longhurst
• South Cambridge
• Welwyn Hatfield

P
age 28



COVID TIMELINE / HOUSING

LOCKDOWN 1 - 1st Government letter received stating emergency works 
only in housing repairs (April 2020).

- 2nd Government letter in May/June referring to essential works.

LOCKDOWN 2 - No further communication from Government regarding 
housing repairs.

LOCKDOWN 3 - No further communication from Government regarding 
housing repairs.

• Mears legally obliged to conduct essential work only.

• Partnership decided to provide the best possible service as close to BAU.

• Understanding was/is needed given simple repairs took longer due to self isolation, 

cleaning down worktop, etc.

• To date there has been no 3rd letter from the Government.

• Mears constantly seeking advice from their Government Crown Cabinet Rep. Mervyn 

Greer.

• Delivery of service has been a constant challenge for the Partnership.

P
age 29



CHALLENGES

Self Isolation Reputation

PPE / NHS Priority Communication

School Closures Uncertainty

Shielding Remote Working

No Van Sharing HSE Inspections

Supplier Closures Repairs 

Taking Longer

Backlog Created Immediate 

Change of Policies

Introduction of New Safe Working Mental Wellbeing

Social Distancing One Way

Systems

P
age 30



RESTART PROGRAMME FOR LOCKDOWN 3

• Backlog of orders to prioritise

• Communication

• Business as usual with no update from government

• Suppliers / Products

• Government guidelines

• Average pre-Covid repairs (October to January) = 1,950

• Average post second lockdown (October to January) = 2,400

P
age 31



Summary
• Contractual KPI performance is strong
• Customer perception of the service is 

declining
• Customer expectations are increasing (social 

media)
• COVID had a major impact on service 

delivery and therefore a backlog of repairs 
and an increase in complaints

• More about this in session 5 (Improving the 
customer experience)

P
age 32



Actions

• Use of furloughed council staff to address 
backlog of complaints

• Backlog of repairs completed
• Digital switch (Mears and WelHat)
• Review of repairs resources
• Acknowledge the need to separate contractual 

KPIs and customer service

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	5 RESPONSIVE REPAIRS
	Overview and Scrutiny of the Housing Maintenance Service
	Background
	Stage two – responsive repairs �
	Responsive repairs numbers
	Priorities for responsive repairs
	How should repairs be managed?
	Slide Number 7
	Quality Assurance
	Key Performance Indicators
	Relevant Contractual Key Performance Indicators, 1
	Relevant Contractual Key Performance Indicators, 2
	Responsive repairs data 2018 - 2021
	Responsive repairs performance
	Customer satisfaction surveys - 1
	Customer satisfaction surveys - 2
	Case study
	Slide Number 17
	The gap between the KPIs being met and the customer satisfaction could be for several reasons
	Most common reasons for dissatisfaction with repairs 2018-2021
	Customers are finding it more difficult to contact the service to report a repair
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Summary
	Actions


